
Department of Purchasing & Contract Compliance 

Fulton County, GA 

March 11,2014 

Re: #14ITB91556K-DB 
Construction Services for the Big Creek WRF Immediate Needs 
Rehabilitation Project S-134 

Dear Vendors: 

Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 2, hereby made a part of the above referenced 
#14ITB91556K-DB; Construction Services for the Big Creek WRF Immediate 
Needs Rehabilitation Project 5-134. 

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the ITB referenced above 
remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

Sincerely, 

Darlene A. Banks, APA 

130 Peachtree Street, S.W.,Suite 1168· Atlanta, GA 30303· (404) 612-5800 
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This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original ITB 
documents as noted below: 

GENERAL ITEMS: 
1. The City of Roswell will require a Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Maintenance/Performance Bond to be 

provided prior to issuance to the Land Disturbance Permit. The successful bidder will be required to obtain the 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Maintenance/Performance Bond in the amount of $3,000.00 payable to 
the City of Roswell. The options for procuring the bond are cash and via Surety. 

RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS: 

QUESTION 1: 
Request that Val-Matic be considered as an acceptable supplier for the equipment listed under Specification 
Section 40 0523 - Process Valves, as follows: 

1. Plug Valve: Model 5000 in 40-0523, 2.2 
2. Swing check valve: Model 7800 in 40-0523, 2.9 
3. Butterfly valve: Model 2000 in 40-0523, 2.10 

RESPONSE 1: 
Yes, revise Specification Section "Process Valves" 40-0523 as follows: 

1. Paragraph 2.2 Eccentric Plug Valves, 2.2 A "All valves and actuators shall be as manufactured by 
DeZurik, Val-Matic, or approved equaL" 

2. Paragraph 2.9 Eccentric Plug Valves, 2.9 A "Check valves larger than 3-inches shall be cushioned swing 
check valves rated for a minimum working pressure of 200 psi and shall be of the "Shockless Swing­ 
Check" type as manufactured by GA Industries, APCO, Val-Matic, or Approved Equal." 

3. Paragraph 2.10 Butterfly Valves - Air Service (Open/Close Applications), 2.10 A. "Manufacturers: 
Provide products manufactured by DeZurik, Val-Matic, or Approved EquaL" 

QUESTION 2: 
Regarding Specification Section "Sludge Dewatering ScrewPress" 46-7627: 

Will the screw press manufacturer be required to replace just one brush on one machine or brushes on all four 
machines? Also will this be in one trip or 4 separate trips? Please clarify 1 or 4 brush changes and number of 
trips. 

RESPONSE 2: 
The requirement is for one machine - the first machine requiring service. The number of trips will be as many as 
necessary to meet the requirement. 
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QUESTION 3: 
Unfortunately, we were unable to make the official site visit and would like to know if you will grant us a visit to 
look at the job before we submit a bid proposal for work. 

RESPONSE 3: 
We currently have no additional site visits planned but any additional site visits will be made known via 
addendum. 

QUESTION 4: 
We respectfully ask if JASH Engineering, Ltd can be added to the current gate specification, Section 43 3063 
Stainless Steel Slide Gates, by addendum to the list of gate manufacturers on Page 4, under Part 2 - Productions, 
2.02 Manufacturer?" 

RESPONSE 4: 
Yes, revise Specification Section "Stainless Steel Slide Gates", Division 43-3063 as follows: 
Paragraph 2.2A "Manufacturers: Provide equipment of one of the following: 
1. Waterman Industries 
2. Rodney Hunt Company / H. Fontaine Ltd. 
3. Jash Engineering Limited 
4. Approved Equal." 

QUESTION 5: 
Please consider postponing the bid date and time. 

RESPONSE 5: 
The Bid Due date and time will remain as Monday, March 24, 2014 @ 11:00am. 

QUESTION 6: 
Form C3 is a Georgia Professional License certification. This does not seem applicable as our contract does not 
include any design services. We are a licensed General Contractor and Utility Contractor in the state of Georgia. 

RESPONSE 6: 
The Entity acting as the Contractor shall have an active Utility Contractors License. See Item 17 in Section 00- 
0100 "Instructions to Bidders" for Professional License certification requirements. 

QUESTION 7: 
Exhibit C Schedule of Intended Subcontractor Utilization - are we to list all subcontractors that is known at the 
time of bid or just the MBE/WBE/DBE firms on this exhibit? 

RESPONSE 7: 
Yes .... list all subcontractors (M/FBE and non-minority). 

QUESTION 8: 
Regarding Specification Section "Circular Clarifier Equipment" 46-4321: 

RESPONSE 8: 
Clarification equipment by SPS Engineering, Inc. will not be considered an alternate manufacturer for this 
project. 
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QUESTION 9: 
We respectfully ask if Gummi-Jaeger AERATION LLC can be added to the current FLEXIBLE MEMBRANE TUBE 
DIFFUSERS specification, Section 46 5131 - Page 1 to 7, by addendum to the list of flexible membrane tube 
diffuser manufacturers Section 1.3 SUBMITIALS. 

RESPONSE 9: 
Flexible Membrane tube diffusers by Gummi-Jaeger AERATION LLC will not be considered an alternate 
manufacturer for this project. 

QUESTION 10: 
Request to allow Keystone Valve, K-Lok Series 36, butterfly valves for modulating service as an approved 
product. 

RESPONSE 10: 
Yes, Revise Specification Section "Process Valves" 40-0523 as follows: 
Paragraph 2.11 A. "Manufacturers: Provide products manufactured by DeZurik, Keystone Valve, or Approved 
Equal." 

QUESTION 11: 
Page 9-1, Item 5: The first sentence states "Using the forms provided in this Section, list previously completed 
or current projects ..... " We could not locate any forms provided for this. Please clarify. 

RESPONSE 11: 
See item 1 in "CHANGES TO VOLUME 1: BIDDING INFORMATION" 

QUESTION 12: 
Page 9-1, Item 5.a: The first sentence states "Contractors must have successfully completed ... " This contradicts 
Item 5 that states "previously completed or current projects ... " Please clarify. 

RESPONSE 12: 
See item 1 in "CHANGES TO VOLUME 1: BIDDING INFORMATION" 

QUESTION 13: 
Page 9-2, Item 7: The first sentence states "Using the forms provided in this Section provide information for the 
Project Manager and the Project Superintendent." We could not locate any forms provided for this. Please 
clarify. 

RESPONSE 13: 
See item 1 in "CHANGES TO VOLUME 1: BIDDING INFORMATION" 
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QUESTION 14: 
The following question concerns Spec Sections 40 9100 2.4 A Level Components Ultrasonic and Spec Section 40- 
91002.7 Flow Components Electromagnetic. 
While Rosemount is named in sections for D.O./ORP (2.3 B), Temperature RTD (2.5), Pressure and Level 
Transmitters (2.6 D and E) we were not included in Sections 2.4 A Ultrasonic Level and 2.7 Electromagnetic Flow. 
Therefore; we respectfully request that the County include Rosemount as an approved supplier of these devises. 

RESPONSE 14: 
Since the request for approval was not received by the pre-approval cut-off date, the request cannot be 
reviewed for pre-approval. 

QUESTION 15: 
Request for Daniel Mechanical Company to be included as an alternate equipment supplier for specification 
section 40 0513.76 (FRP Ductwork), 40 0523.10 (FRP Dampers), 44 3119 (Radial Flow Carbon Odor Control 
Systems) 

RESPONSE 15: 
Since the request for approval was not received by the pre-approval cut-off date, the request cannot be 
reviewed for pre-approval. 

QUESTION 16: 
Request for Process Wastewater Technologies, LLC to be included as an alternate equipment supplier for the 
Sludge Dewatering Screw Press. 

RESPONSE 16: 
Since the request for approval was not received by the pre-approval cut-off date, the request cannot be 
reviewed for pre-approval. 
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CHANGES TO VOLUME 1: BIDDING INFORMATION 
1. DELETE SECTION 00-0900, "SPECIAL CONDITIONS" and replace with the following SECTION 00-0900, "SPECIAL 

CONDITIONS" which is attached to this addendum. 

CHANGES TO VOLUME 2: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
1. ADD SECTION 01-2900, "PAYMENT PROCEDURES" which is attached to this addendum. 

CHANGES TO VOLUME 3: CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 
1. The Land Disturbance Permit Set of drawings is attached to this Addendum as a PDF. There are 10 sheets, 

numbered as follows: C-OO.Ol, C-00.02, C-00.03, C-00.07, C-00.11, C-00.12, C-OO.13, C-00.1S, C-00.16, C-00.17 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO.2 

The undersigned bidder acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Department of Purchasing & Contract 
Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the ITB due date and time Monday, March 24. 2014, @ 
11:00 A.M. 

This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No.2, day of _ 
20 . 

Legal Name of Bidder 

Signature of Authorized Representative 

Title 
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SECTION 00 0900 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS AND SAFETY RECORD FORM 

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 
This Statement is to accompany bids submitted for the following project: 
141TB91556K-DB Construction Services for the Big Creek WRF Immediate 
Needs Rehabilitation Project S-134. Bidders must meet the minimum 
qualification criteria set forth under items 5, 7, 8, 9 10, 11 and 12 of this 
section and must provide the organization chart as set forth under item 6 of 
this section to be deemed a "Responsible and Responsive Bidder". 

1. NAME OF BIDDER: 

2. BUSINESS ADDRESS: _ 

3. TELEPHONE NUMBER: _ 

4. OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVE AND TITLE: _ 

5. Using the form provided at the end of this Section, list previously completed 
projects which are similar in scope and complexity to this project which 
were completed or assigned to your firm or joint venture, including: Name of 
project, location of project, owner's name, address and phone number, 
description of work performed, initial contract amount, final contract amount, 
start date, scheduled completion date and actual completion date. (If a joint 
venture, list separately for each joint venture partner.) Limit to 5. 

a. Contractors must have successfully completed at least two contracts 
involving construction or modification of an activated sludge 
wastewater treatment plant with at least tertiary treatment and with 
solids handling systems. Work will have included reinforced concrete, 
erection of structural steel, piping, installation of process and 
mechanical equipment, odor control, electrical, instrumentation and 
control systems with a capacity of not less than 20 MGD and a 
construction value of not less than $15,000,000. 

6. Provide the following information for the organization proposed for this 
project: 

a. Organizational chart. 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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b. Indicate the participation by the various members in the organization, 
as shown on the organizational chart, in the management and in the 
division of work (If a joint venture, indicate percent of man hours and 
percent of project cost to be performed by each joint venture 
member). 

7. Using the form provided at the end of this Section, provide information for 
the Project Manager and the Project Superintendent. 

a. Project Manager must have been project manager for duration of 
project and successfully completed at least two contracts involving 
construction or modification of an activated sludge wastewater 
treatment plant with at least tertiary treatment and with solids handling 
systems. Work will have included reinforced concrete, erection of 
structural steel, piping, installation of process and mechanical 
equipment, odor control, electrical, instrumentation and control 
systems with a capacity of not less than 20 MGD and a construction 
value of not less than $15,000,000. 

b. Project Superintendent must have successfully completed at least two 
contracts involving construction or modification of an activated sludge 
wastewater treatment plant with at least tertiary treatment and with 
solids handling systems. Work will have included reinforced concrete, 
erection of structural steel, piping, installation of process and 
mechanical equipment, odor control, electrical, instrumentation and 
control systems with a capacity of not less than 20 MGD and a 
construction value of not less than $15,000,000. 

8. The Contractor must have an established Safety Program. Complete the 
attached form entitled "CONTRACTOR SAFETY RECORD FORM". 

9. The Contractor's Workman's Compensation Ratings (EMR-Experience 
Modification Rate) must not exceed an average of 1.0 over the last three 
(3) years. 

Year Experience Modification Rate (EMR) 

Average: 

10. The Contractor's OSHA Incidence Rates must not exceed the Industry 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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Standard for Construction, published by the U.S. Department of Labor 
(2012) for Heavy and Civil Engineering Construction, all industries, (i.e.­ 
Recordable Incidence Rates of 3.2 and Days Away from Work Incidence 
Rates of 1.7 per OSHA definition and calculation) for the last three (3) 
years. 

Total Recordable 
Incidents 

Total 
Hours 
Worked 

OSHA 
Incidence 

Rate* 
Year 

Average 

Total Days Away 
from Work 
Incidents 

Total 
Hours 
Worked 

OSHA 
Incidence 

Rate* 
Year 

Average 

* Use your OSHA Form No. 200 and the formula: 

(Total Incidents x 200,000 hours)+ (Number of hours worked) = Incidence Rate 

11. If there have been any fatalities during the last five (5) years on any projects 
performed by the Contractor or on any work performed under the direct 
supervision of a proposed Project Manager and the Contractor or proposed 
Project Manager was cited by OSHA for "Willful", in performing the work in 
which the fatality occurred, the Contractor will be disqualified based on the 
County's review. The Contractor may also be disqualified in the event that a 
Recordable Incident occurred due to the same condition that existed when a 
previous fatality occurred and resulted in an OSHA citation for failure to 
implement a corrective action plan. 

a. Fatalities during the last five years where Contractor was cited by 
OSHA for "Willful" Violation --------------------- 

b. Fatalities during the last five years where the proposed Project 
Manager was cited by OSHA for "Willful" Violation. 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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12. If there have been any incidents during the last five (5) years on any 
wastewater or water treatment facility projects performed by the Contractor 
or on any work performed under the direct supervision of a proposed Project 
Manager that resulted in the wastewater or water treatment facility failing to 
meet NPDES Discharge Permit requirements due to the actions of the 
Contractor or Project Manager or failure of the Contractor or Project 
Manager to perform work on schedule; the Contractor will be disqualified 
based on the County's review. 

a. NPDES Discharge Permit violations during the last 5 years related 
to facility projects performed by the 
Contractor: ------------------- 

b. NPDES Discharge Permit violations during the last 5 years related 
to work under the direct supervision of the proposed Project 
Manager: 

The previous statements and attachments are true, correct, and complete to the 
best of my knowledge. 

Date: ---------------------- 
Firm Name: ---------------------------------------------------- 
8y: __ 

Title: --------------------------------------------------------- 
Sworn to and subscribed before me 

this __ day of , 2013 

Notary Public 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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CONTRACTOR SAFETY RECORD FORM 

A. General Information 

Name of Firm: 

Business Address: 

Telephone: Fax: 

Prepared by/Title: Date prepared: 

II. Experience Modification Rates 

List your firm's Workers Compensation Experience Modification Rates (EMR) for the last 
three years. 

Year 
Experience Modification Rate 

(EMR) 

III. OSHA Incidence Rates 

A. List your firm's Occupational Safety Health Administration (OSHA) incidence rates for the 
last three years 

Total Recordable Total OSHA 
Year Incidents Hours Incidence 

Worked Rate* 

* Use your OSHA Form No. 200 and the formula: 

(Total Incidents x 200,000 hours) + (Number of hours worked) = Incidence Rate 

B. Provide your incidence rates over the last three years for the following categories: 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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Incidence Rate by Year* 

Year Year Year 
Category 

Fatalities 

Injuries and Illnesses with Lost Work 
Days 

Injuries and Illnesses with Restricted 
Work Days 

* Use your OSHA Form No. 200 and the formula: 

(Total Incidents x 200,000 bours)» (Number of hours worked) = Incidence Rate 

C. Does your firm have any upheld OSHA citations in the past five years? 

Yes n No [; (If yes, attach explanation) 

IV. Safety Program Information 

A. Do you have a written safety program? 

Yes [j No C (If yes, attach outline) 

B. Which of the following does your safety program contain: 

1. Does your company require health and safety training of its subcontractors? 

Yes [ No 0 

2. Is documentation of health and safety training required? 

Yes C No [ 

3. Do you have a Hazard Communication Program (29 CFR 1910.1200, CCR Title 8 Section 
5194)? 

Yes I:::: No 0 

4. Do you have a Confined Space Entry and Rescue Program (29 CFR 1910.146, CCR Title 8 
Section 5156-5159)? 

Yes C No 0 (If yes, attach explanation) 

5. Do you have a "Hot Work" permit program (29 CFR 1910.146, CCR Title 8 5156-5159)? 

Yes C No 0 (If yes, attach explanation) 

IV. Safety Program Information (cont'd) 

B. Which of the following does your safety program contain (cont'd): 

6. Do you have a "Lock-Outrrag-Out" program (29 CFR 191 0.417)? 

Yes C No C (If yes, attach explanation) 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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C. Do you have an Equipment Maintenance Program for the following: 

1. Miscellaneous construction tools and equipment? Yes -= No 1- 

2. Ladders? Yes - No [ 

3. Scaffolds? Yes :::, No C 

4. Heavy Equipment? Yes '= No r 

5. Vehicles? Yes l.... No [ 

D. Do you have a new employee safety orientation program? 

Yes I. No [ 

1. If yes, does it include instruction in the following: 

(a) Company Safety Policy Yes L- No [' 
(b) Company Safety Rules Yes L No 0 
(c) Safety Meeting Attendance Yes [ No I' 
(d) Company Safety Record Yes r- No 0 
(e) Hazard Recognition Yes L No [ 
(f) Hazard Reporting Yes [1 No [_ 
(g) Injury Reporting Yes [ No C 
(h) Non-Injury Accident Reporting Yes e- No c.. 
(i) Personal Protective Equipment Yes [ No C 
(j) Respiratory Protection Yes [i No r. 
(k) Fire Protection Yes [. No C 
(I) Housekeeping Yes c No C 
(m) Toxic Substance Yes [ No [ 
(n) Electrical Safety Yes [_ NoC 
(0) Fall Protection Yes Co No 0 
(p) First-Aid/CPR Yes [ No 0 
(q) Driving Safety Yes C No r, 
(r) Hearing Conservation Yes [ No C 
(s) Lock-Out/Tag-Out Yes I Nol 
(t) Bloodborne Pathogens Yes C No C 
(u) Asbestos Yes C No [ 
(v) Confined Spaces Yes [I No [. 
(w) Hazard Communication Yes C No r 

IV. Safety Program Information (cont'd) 

E. Do you conduct safety meetings for your employees? Yes 0 No C 

1. If yes, how often: 

Daily [. Weekly [ Bi-weekly C Monthly:::J As Needed [ 

F. Do you conduct health and safety audits of work in progress? 

Yes 0 No C 

1 . If yes, who conducts the audits? 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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2. How often are the audits conducted? 

G. Do you notify a/l employees of accidents and precautions related to accidents and near 
misses? 

Yes [ No 0 

1. If yes, how is this notification accomplished? 

(a) Safety meetings 
(b) Post notification in office 
(c) Post notification at the site where the incident occurred 
(d) Other _ 

Yes 0 
Yes l_j 
Yes C 

No [J 
No C 
No n 

H. Is safety a criteria in evaluating the performance of 

1 . Employees 
2. Supervisors 
3. Management 

Yes Ij 
Yes ~ 
Yes 0 

No C 
No 0 
No [ 

I. Does your firm hold "tailgate" safety meetings? Yes [J No n 

1. If yes, how often: 

Daily = Weekly- Bi-weekly C MonthlyO As Needed [j 

J. Does your company have a drug and alcohol testing policy? 

Yes [] No C 

K. Does your company require that subcontractors participate in a drug surveillance/testing 
program? 

Yes 0 No [1 

L. Does your company have a method of disseminating safety information? 

Yes [1 No 0 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 
PROJECT SUPERINTENDENT'S EXPERIENCE 

(Complete Form Only For Projects That Meet Minimum Criteria) 

Proiect Name 
Proiect Location 
Contractor's Project Superintendent 
Owners Representative & Phone 
Number 
Design Engineer Representative 
Name & Phone Number 
Treatment Facility Capacity (MGD) 
Initial Contract Amount $ 
Final Contract Amount $ 
Project Duration Date Started: 

Date Completed: 
Time Extensions: 

Was Proiect Completed on Time? 
List Any NPDES Permit Violations 
Due to Contractors Failure to 
Complete Project on Schedule or 
Due to Contractor's Failure to 
Prooerlv Coordinate its Work. 
Description of Major Project Components: 

END OF SECTION 00 0900 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 
PROJECT MANAGER'S EXPERIENCE 

(Complete Form Only For Projects That Meet Minimum Criteria) 

Project Name 
Project Location 
Contractor's Project Manaqer 
Owners Representative & Phone 
Number 
Design Engineer Representative 
Name & Phone Number 
Treatment Facility Capacity (MGD) 
Initial Contract Amount $ 
Final Contract Amount $ 
Project Duration Date Started: 

Date Completed: 
Time Extensions: 

Was Project Completed on Time? 
List Any NPDES Permit Violations 
Due to Contractors Failure to 
Complete Project on Schedule or 
Due to Contractor's Failure to 
Properly Coordinate its Work. 
Description of Major Project Components: 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 
COMPANY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

(Complete Form Only For Projects That Meet Minimum Criteria) 

Project Name 
Project Location 
Contractor's Project Manaqer 
Contractor's Project Superintendent 
Owners Representative & Phone 
Number 
Design Engineer Representative 
Name & Phone Number 
Treatment Facility Capacity (MGD) 
Initial Contract Amount $ 
Final Contract Amount $ 
Project Duration Date Started: 

Date Completed: 
Time Extensions: 

Was Project Completed on Time? 
List Any NPDES Permit Violations 
Due to Contractors Failure to 
Complete Project on Schedule or 
Due to Contractor's Failure to 
Properly Coordinate its Work. 
Description of Major Project Components: 

Section 00 0900 - Special Conditions (REVISION, ADDENDUM 2) 
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5-134 Big Creek WRF Immediate Needs Rehabilitation Project 
Fulton County Department of Water Resources 
GS&P Project No. 29435.01 

PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

Section 012900 - Page 1 of 3 

PART 1 -GENERAL 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements necessary to 
prepare and process Applications for Payment. 

B. Related Requirements: 
1 Section "Measurement and Payment". 
2 Section "Contract Modification Procedures" for administrative procedures 

for handling changes to the Contract. 
3 Section "Construction Progress Documentation" for administrative 

requirements governing the preparation and submittal of the Contractor's 
construction schedule. 

1.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
Schedule of values will be per Section 01-3001, "Schedule of Values" 

1.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 

A. Each Application for Payment shall be consistent with previous applications and 
payments as certified by Engineer and Construction Manager and paid for by 
Owner. 
1. Initial Application for Payment, Application for Payment at time of Substantial 

Completion, and final Application for Payment involve additional 
requirements. 

B. Payment Application Times: The date for each progress payment is indicated in 
the Agreement between Owner and Contractor. The period of construction work 
covered by each Application for Payment is the period indicated in the 
Agreement. 

C. Payment Application Times: Submit Application for Payment to the 
Construction Manager by the end of the month. The period covered by each 
Application for Payment is one month, ending on the last day of the month. 

D. Application for Payment Forms: Use AlA Document G702 and AlA Document 
G703 AlA Document G702/CMa and AlA Document G703 as form for 
Applications for Payment. 

E. Application for Payment Forms: Use forms acceptable to Owner and Engineer for 
Applications for Payment. 

F. Application Preparation: Complete every entry on form. Notarize and execute 
by a person authorized to sign legal documents on behalf of Contractor. The 

ISSUED VIA ADDENDUM 2 
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GS&P Project No. 29435.01 

PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

Section 012900 - Page 2 of 3 

Construction Manager will return incomplete applications without action. 
1. Entries shall match data on the schedule of values and Contractor's 

construction schedule. Use updated schedules if revisions were made. 
2. Include amounts of Change Orders and Construction Change Directives 

issued before last day of construction period covered by application. 

G. Transmittal: Submit five signed and notarized original copies of each 
Application for Payment to the Construction Manager by a method ensuring 
receipt within 24 hours. One approved copy will be returned to the Contractor. 

1. Transmit each copy with a transmittal form listing attachments and recording 
appropriate information about application. 

H. Waivers of Mechanic's Lien: With each Application for Payment, submit waivers 
of mechanic's lien from entities lawfully entitled to file a mechanic's lien arising 
out of the Contract and related to the Work covered by the payment. 
1. Submit partial waivers on each item for amount requested in previous 

application, after deduction for retainage, on each item. 
2. When an application shows completion of an item, submit conditional final or 

full waivers. 
3. Owner reserves the right to designate which entities involved in the Work 

must submit waivers. 
4. Waiver Forms: Submit executed waivers of lien on forms acceptable to 

Owner. 

I. Initial Application for Payment: Administrative actions and submittals that must 
precede or coincide with submittal of first Application for Payment include the 
following: 
1. List of subcontractors. 
2. Schedule of values. 
3. Contractor's construction schedule (preliminary if not final). 
4. Schedule of unit prices. 
5. Submittal schedule (preliminary if not final). 
6. List of Contractor's staff assignments. 
7. List of Contractor's principal consultants. 
8. Copies of building permits. 
9. Copies of authorizations and licenses from authorities having jurisdiction for 

performance of the Work. 
1 O.lnitial progress report. 
11. Report of preconstruction conference. 
12. Certificates of insurance and insurance policies. 
13. Pre-construction photographs and videos. 
14. Other documents as required by the Contract or Construction Manager. 

J. Application for Payment at Substantial Completion: After Engineer issues the 

ISSUED VIA ADDENDUM 2 
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Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit an Application for Payment showing 
100 percent completion for portion of the Work claimed as substantially complete. 
1. Include documentation supporting claim that the Work is substantially 

complete and a statement showing an accounting of changes to the Contract 
Sum. 

2. This application shall reflect Certificates of Partial Substantial Completion 
issued previously for Owner occupancy of designated portions of the Work. 

K. Final Payment Application: After completing Project closeout requirements, 
submit final Application for Payment with releases and supporting documentation 
not previously submitted and accepted, including, but not limited, to the following: 
1. Evidence of completion of Project closeout requirements. 
2. Insurance certificates for products and completed operations where required 

and proof that taxes, fees, and similar obligations were paid. 
3. Updated final statement, accounting for final changes to the Contract Sum. 
4. AlA Document G706, current version, "Contractor's Affidavit of Payment of 

Debts and Claims." 
5. AlA Document G706A, current version, "Contractor's Affidavit of Release of 

Liens." 
6. AlA Document G707, current version, "Consent of Surety to Final Payment." 
7. Evidence that claims have been settled. 
8. Exhibit A, Final Affidavit, page 7-33, Section 00-0700 "General Conditions." 
9. Final meter readings for utilities, a measured record of stored fuel, and 

similar data as of date of SUbstantial Completion or when Owner took 
possession of and assumed responsibility for corresponding elements of the 
Work. 

10. Final liquidated damages settlement statement. 
11. Post-construction photographs and videos 
12. Contractor's statement of completion of all work. 
13. Notification of warranty period for all major pieces of equipment. 
14. Transmittal signed by the Construction Manager for all deliverables. 
15. Other documents requested by the Contract or Construction Manager as 

deemed required for final payment. 

PART 2 -PRODUCTS (Not Used) 

PART 3 -EXECUTION (Not Used) 

END OF SECTION 01-2900 
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